

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

We, being Professional Land Surveyors of Nevada, desiring to advance the Profession of Land Surveying, to assist in maintaining a high degree of professional ethics, and improve the proficiency of all Professional Land Surveyors in performing proper services to their clients and the public, do hereby associate ourselves together and adopt and subscribe to the following articles.

ARTICLE I – NAME AND PLACE OF BUSINESS

1.01 NAME

The Name shall be the Southern Nevada Chapter of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors.

1.02 BUSINESS ADDRESS

The business address shall be that of the Chapter Secretary or designated Post Office and box.

ARTICLE II – OBJECTIVES

2.01 PURPOSE

This purpose of this Chapter, as in the state Association, shall be:

- (a) To promote for the common good and welfare of its members in their activities in the Profession of Land Surveying.
- (b) To promote and maintain the highest possible standards of professional ethics and practice.
- (c) To promote public awareness and trust in Professional Land Surveyors and their work.

2.02 SCOPE

This Chapter, in its activities and membership, shall be nonpartisan, nonsectarian, non-discriminatory and local in scope.

ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIP

The membership in this Chapter shall be:

3.01 REGULAR MEMBERS

Any person who is registered as a Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Nevada and is a member in good standing with the State Association may apply as a Regular Member as a Regular Member. Holding office in the Association is restricted to Regular Members. Regular Members are entitled to one-full vote.

3.02 LAND SURVEY INTERN MEMBERS

Any person holding a certificate as a Land Survey Intern in the State of Nevada and is a members in good standing with the State Association may apply as a Survey Intern Member. Land Survey Intern members are entitled to one-half vote.

3.03 ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

Any person who, in their profession, relies on the fundamentals of Land Surveying and is sponsored by a Regular Member of the Chapter and is a member in good standing with the State Association may apply as an Associate Member.

3.04 STUDENT MEMBER

Any person who is interested in the profession of Land Surveying, is a full time student in a College or University, is sponsored by a regular member of the Chapter and is a member in good standing with the State Association may apply is a Student Member.

3.05 SUSTAINING MEMBER

Any individual company or firm, which by their in the Land Surveying Profession, is desirous of supporting the purpose and objective of this Association and Chapter and is a Member in good standing in the State Association may apply as a Sustaining Member.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

ARTICLE IV – FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL MEETING

4.01 FISCAL YEAR

The Fiscal Year of this Chapter shall be from January 1ST through December 31ST inclusively.

4.02 ANNUAL MEETING

The Chapter Executive Board shall schedule a General Membership Meeting in November of each year which shall be known as the “Annual Meeting,” (SECTION 14.03)

ARTIC V – DUES, FEES AND PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

5.01 DUES

Increases or decreases in the Chapter dues shall be ratified by the Regular Members prior to the Annual Meeting. If ratified, the increase or decrease will become effective the following fiscal year. (SECTION 18.02)

5.02 FEES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS

All fees for Special Events or Activities shall be established by the Chapter Executive Board. (SECTION 7.01)

5.02 PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

The proposed Fiscal Year Budget shall be presented for approval at the General Membership Meeting in January. The Budget shall:

- (a) Be prepared by the President Elect with the assistance of the Chapter Secretary and Treasurer (SECTIONS 9.02, 9.03 and 9.04).
- (b) Not to exceed the projected income from dues plus the prior year surplus.

ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVES

6.01 OFFICERS

The Officers of this Chapter shall consist of a President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer.

6.02 DIRECTORS

The Officers of this Chapter shall be assisted in their administration by five (5) Directors and Honorary Directors. (SECTIONS 7.01, 8.02, 8.04, 9.05 and 12.12)

6.03 CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVES

The Officers of this Chapter shall be assisted in their administration duties by the Chapter Representative. (SECTIONS 7.01, 8.02, 9.06, 10.01 and 10.02)

ARTICLE VII – ADMINISTRATION

7.01 MANAGEMENT

The management and all business of the Chapter shall be conducted by the Officers, Directors and Chapter Representatives hereafter referred to as the “Executive Board.”

7.02 EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

The Executive Board may appoint an Executive Secretary to assist the officers of the Chapter in their Administrative duties.

7.03 AUTHORITY

Authority of the Executive Board to act on behalf of the Chapter shall be limited by this Constitution and Bylaws.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

ARTICLE VIII – QUALIFICATIONS, ELECTIONS, INSTALLATION AND VACANCIES OF THE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVE

8.01 QUALIFICATIONS

To qualify as an Officer, Director or Chapter Representative, a person must be a Regular Member in good standing in the Association and Chapter.

8.02 ELECTION

The Chapter Officers herein described as the President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer along with the Chapter Directors and Representative shall be elected by a majority vote of the Regular Members responding to a ballot for a period coincident with the fiscal (1) year (SECTIONS 4.01, 6.01, 9.01, 9.02, 9.04, 9.05 and 9.06)

8.03 INSTALLATION

The Chapter Officers, Directors and Representative shall be installed at a Special Meeting in December. The Procedure is:

- (a) The time and place of the Special Meeting shall be determined by the Executive Board. (SECTION 14.02)
- (b) The current President Elect shall advance and be installed as President.
- (c) The newly elected Chapter Officers, Directors and Representative shall be officially installed after reciting the OATH OF OFFICE.
- (d) Subject to condition set forth in Section 8.04, the Honorary Director(s) shall be installed by approval of a majority of the Executive Board at the first Executive Board meeting in January for the duration of the Fiscal Year.

8.04 HONORARY DIRECTOR

At its discretion, the Executive Board may elect a former Officer or Director to the position Honorary Director. (SECTION 8.03)

8.05 VACANCIES

When ever a vacancy in the Executive Board occurs, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment approved by the Executive Board. Any Officer, Director or Chapter Representative who cease to be a Regular Chapter Member, shall thereupon forfeit his/her office and cease to be a member of the Executive Board.

8.06 SIMULTANEOUS CANDIDACY FOR CHAPTER AND STATE OFFICE PROHIBITED

A Regular Member who qualifies as a candidate for an elective position on the Executive Board may not simultaneously be a candidate for an elective position (President Elect, Secretary or Treasurer) for the State Board of Directors. This also precludes the President from being a candidate for an elective position on the State Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX – DUTIES OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVES AND EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

9.01 PRESIDENT

The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Chapter. It shall be the duty of the President:

- (a) To preside at all meeting of the Executive Board and General Membership Meetings.
 1. After receiving the Nominating Committees Report at the October General Membership Meeting, the President shall read the report to the General Membership (CL § 9.03). Beginning with the President Elect, the candidates for office shall be announced, the Secretary, Treasurer, Chapter Representative and Directors. Upon completion of the Nominating Committee Report, the President shall call for nomination from the floor, commencing with the President Elect (Robert’s Rules of Order § 45).

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

2. After receiving the Teller Committee's Report at the November General Membership Meeting, the Annual Meeting (CL § 4.02 & 14.03), the President shall read the names of the candidates that have been elected for the next fiscal year, commencing with the President Elect. The President shall also announce that Regular Members may receive a copy of the Teller's Report upon request.
- (b) To sign all contracts and other instruments requiring the Seal of this Chapter and such other instruments as the Executive Board may require.
- (c) To appoint committees and assign duties to them, except the Nominating – Teller Committee.
- (d) To be an ex officio of all committees, except the Nominating – Teller Committee.
- (e) To represent the Chapter at the State Board of Directors Meeting as a Chapter Representative.

9.02 PRESIDENT ELECT

The duties of the President Elect are:

- (a) In the absence of the President or in the event of his inability to act, to perform duties of the President. When acting so, he will have all the power of the President.
- (b) To serve as the Chapter Parliamentarian (SECTION 14.05)
- (c) To represent the Chapter at the State Board of Directors Meetings as Chapter Representative (SECTION 10.02).
- (d) Be responsible for the oversight of the Executive Secretary, if so appointed (SECTION 7.02)
- (e) To prepare the Proposed Fiscal Budget (SECTION 5.03).

9.03 SECRETARY

The Secretary shall give notice of meetings to the General Membership as appropriate. He/she shall:

- (a) Take minutes of all Chapter Meetings, make records of the same, distribute copies of said minutes to the Executive Board prior to the next meeting.
- (b) Prepare and keep such records as the Chapter may require and the Executive Board may prescribe.
- (c) Prepare and mail ballots with return envelopes to the Regular Members within seven (7) days after the nomination are closed at the General Membership Meeting in October. The ballots and envelopes shall contain:
 1. The Name of the candidate for Officers, Directors and Chapter Representative, nominated by the Nominating Committee, nominated from the floor by Regular Members, and blank spaces for candidate nominated by the "Write-in-Method."
 2. Boxes for checking "Yes" (in favor of) or "No" (not in favor of) ratifying a proposed change(s) or amendment(s) to the Chapter Constitution and Bylaws (SECTION 18.04).
 3. A copy of proposed change(s) or amendment(s).
 4. Instructions which indicate that the ballot must be returned seven (7) days prior to the General Membership Meeting in November, the Annual Meeting, with the date of the meeting given.
- (d) Counter sign all papers and documents requiring the signature of the President.
- (e) Be custodian of the Seal of the Chapter and have the authority to affix it to all papers and documents requiring said Seal.
- (f) Assist the President Elect in preparing the Fiscal Year Budget (SECTION 5.03).
- (g) Serve as an advisor to the Nominating – Teller Committee at their request.

9.04 TREASURER

The Treasurer shall prepare and keep such accounts as the Chapter may require and the Executive Board may subscribe. He/she shall:

- (a) Have custody of the funds of the Chapter.
- (b) Prepare and keep an account of receipts and distribution as the President of the Chapter may require and the Executive Board may prescribe.
- (c) Deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name of and credit of the Chapter in such depositories as may be designated by the Executive Board.
- (d) Distribute the funds of the Chapter as may be ordered by the Executive Board, take proper vouchers for said disbursements and render to the other Officers, Directors and Chapter Representative at the regular meeting of the Executive Board, or whenever they require and accounting of his/her transaction as Treasurer and the financial condition of the Chapter.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

- (e) Distribute a written account of his/her transaction to all members of the Executive Board at regular meetings of the Executive Board.
- (f) Assist the President Elect in preparing the Proposed Fiscal Year Budget (SECTION 5.03).

9.05 DIRECTORS

- (a) The President may assign the Directors to various standing and special committees (SECTION 6.02 and 8.04).
- (b) The Directors should be familiar with the Robert's Rules of Order (SECTION 14.05).
- (c) The Directors shall constitute the Nominating – Teller Committee (SECTION 12.12).

9.06 CHAPTER REPRESENTATIVE

The Chapter Representative shall represent the Chapter, as do the President and President Elect, at the State Board of Directors meetings and attend the Chapter Executive Board Meeting. Also, the President may assign the Chapter Representative to various Standing and Special Committees (SECTIONS 6.03, 7.01, 8.02 AND 10.02).

9.07 EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

- (a) Need not be a member of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors.
- (b) May be paid as directed by the Executive Board.
- (c) May, when so directed by the Executive Board, sign checks for funds to be distributed (SECTION 9.03).

9.08 HONORARY DIRECTOR

The Honorary Director shall have the same duties and privileges as elected Directors except that of the Nominating – Teller Committee.

ARTICLE X – CHAPTER REPRESENTATION TO THE STATE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

10.01 NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIVES

In accordance with the latest version of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors' Constitution and Bylaws, each Chapter is limited to the number of Representatives to the State Board of Directors by quotas.

10.02 REPRESENTATION

In order to maintain continuity between the Chapter Executive Board and the State Board of Directors, the Chapter Representative shall be: First, the President; second, the President Elect; and third, the Chapter Representative, subject to quotas (SECTIONS 6.03, 8.02, 9.01, 9.02 and 9.06).

10.03 MEETING ATTENDANCE

If a Chapter Representative cannot attend a scheduled State Board of Directors' meeting:

- (a) He shall notify the Chapter President in advance and recommend a replacement.
- (b) The Chapter President shall appoint a member of the Chapter Executive Board.

ARTICLE XI – ANNUAL REPORT

The Executive Board shall make reports annually to the Chapter at the Annual Meeting (SECTIONS 4.02 and 14.04).

ARTICLE XII – STANDING COMMITTEES

12.01 APPOINTMENTS

The President shall appoint members of the Executive Board to the following Standing Committees as chairperson to serve during his/her tenure in office, and each committee shall consist of not less than one (1) Member of the Executive Board unless otherwise noted (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 3.04, and 9.05).

12.02 ADDITIONAL COMMITTEES

In addition too the following Standing Committees, the Executive Board may create such additional, special or ad hoc as the deem necessary (SECTIONS 9.01 and 13.00).

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

12.03 CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

The Constitution and Bylaws Committee shall:

- (a) Be composed of a minimum of three (3) Regular Members (SECTION 3.01).
- (b) Be familiar with the Robert's Rules of Order (SECTION 14.05).
- (c) Prior to the Executive Board meeting in February, present to the Executive Board and the State Board of Directors a draft of the proposed change(s) or amendment(s) to the Constitution and Bylaws.
- (d) Prior to the Chapter's Executive Board meeting in September, present to the Executive Board and State Board of Directors a draft of the proposed change(s) or amendment(s) or review (SECTION 18.03(a)).
- (e) No later than the Executive Board meeting in October, present the final draft to the Executive Board for approval.

12.04 MEMBERSHIP

10 The Membership Committee

- (a) Be composed of six (6) members (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 and 3.04).
- (b) By the end of January, obtain a list of names and addresses of active and prospective members from:
 - 1. Central Office, Nevada Association of Land Surveyors.
 - 2. State of Nevada Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors.
 - 3. Sustaining Members.
 - 4. Engineering Firms, Department and Municipal Entities.
- (c) Complete a list of Regular, Survey Interns, Associates, and Sustaining Members and distribute this list to members of the Executive Board and any interested firms or municipal agencies.
- (d) Coordinate the development of solicitous material, policies, and programs with various Chapter Standing and Special Committees.

12.05 EDUCATION

The Education Committee shall be responsible for (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, and 3.04):

- (a) Maintaining and developing preparatory course and course materials for certification as a Survey Intern and licensing Professional Land Surveyors.
- (b) Developing and sponsoring, or recommending Continuing Education Courses in technical, evidential research, legal and analytical aspects of Land Surveying. This responsibility includes Continuing Education Courses in business principles, management, communications, oral and written presentations and personnel management.
- (c) Develop and maintain courses and course material specifically designed to introduce members of the Chapter to the functions of the State Association and Chapter's officers, directors and standing and special committees.

12.06 SCHOLARSHIP

The Scholarship Committee shall be:

- (a) Composed of three (3) members (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 and 3.04).
- (b) Responsible for the coordination of fund raising and distribution of funds for scholarship(s).
- (c) Responsible for formulating and maintaining the criteria for judging the qualifications of candidates for the scholarship(s).

12, 07 LEGISLATIVE

The Legislative Committee shall:

- (a) Be composed of as many members as the Committee has coalition partners among the business and professional associations or organizations in Southern Nevada (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 and 3.04).
- (b) Be familiar with those sections of the Nevada Revised Statutes pertaining to Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, Land Division, Water Rights, Health and Environment, etc.
- (c) Be familiar with the Legislative Procedures and Actions portion of the "Legislative Manual" prepared by the State of Nevada Legislative Council Bureau.
- (d) Be familiar with the procedures required by the State of Nevada, Department of Administration for submitting a request for additions or revisions to the NRS, and time constraints established by said department for filing said requests.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

- (e) Attend legislative subcommittee meetings and testify in the defense of or against any addition or revision to NRS.
- (f) Meet and coordinate the preparation of any additions or revisions to the NRS with the following association or departments: Home Builders, General Contractors, Legal Profession, Municipal Governments, Realtors and Title Insurance, or as determined necessary by the Executive Board.

12.08 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

The Government Affairs Committee shall:

- (a) Act as the Association's advocate with the public entities.
- (b) Report to the Association on pending and/or proposed ordinances or policies changes.
- (c) Review the various mapping standards imposed by different public entities in Southern Nevada.
- (d) Monitor minimum mapping standards for the Association.

12.09 PUBLICATION

The Publication Committee shall:

- (a) Prepare news releases concerning chapter meetings and chapter events.
- (b) At the discretion of the Executive Board prepare a newsletter to be sent to the Chapter Membership (SECTION 16.01).

12.10 PROGRAMS

The Program Committee shall be:

- (a) Responsible for scheduling guest speakers to speak at the General Membership Meeting and Special Meetings (SECTIONS 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 and 3.04).
- (b) Responsible for arranging and scheduling the place for the General Membership and Special Meetings (SECTION 16.01)

12.11 ETHICS

The Ethics Committee shall/will:

- (a) Be composed of two (2) members of the Executive Board and one (1) Regular Member.
- (b) Be familiar with the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors "Code of Ethics," the Guide for Professional Practices under the Code of Ethics, and the "Guidelines for Processing Violation of the Code of Ethics of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors."
- (c) Abide by SECTION 17.03 when processing complaints of purported violations of the Code of Ethics and Bylaws.

12.12 NOMINATING - TELLER

The Nominating – Teller Committee shall:

- (a) Be composed of the elected Directors (SECTIONS 6.02, 8.04 and 9.05).
- (b) Elect its Chairman/Teller.
- (c) Abide by Robert's Rule of Order during its proceedings and the Chapter's "Nomination and Teller Committee Procedures."

ARTICLE XIII – SPECIAL OR AD HOC COMMITTEES

The Executive Board and/or the President may create such special committees as they deem necessary (SECTION 12.02).

ARTICLE XIV – CHAPTER MEETINGS, PARLIAMENTARY LAW, AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

14.01 EXECUTIVE BOARD

The Chapter Executive Board shall schedule a Regular Business Meeting, preferably two (2) weeks prior to the General Membership Meeting. The date, time, and place shall be determined by the Executive Board.

14.02 GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

The Executive Board shall schedule a General Membership Meeting monthly:

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

- (a) The date, time and place shall be determined by the Executive Board.
- (b) The order of business shall be determined by the Executive Board.
- (c) Except in December, the Executive Board shall schedule a Special Meeting of the General Membership for the express purpose of installing newly elected Officers, Directors and the Chapter Representative (SECTIONS 12.10 and 14.04).

14.03 ANNUAL MEETING

The Executive Board shall schedule and General Membership Meeting in November of each year which will be known as the "Annual Meeting" (SECTION 4.02).

14.04 SPECIAL MEETING

Special may be called by the President and/or the Executive Board when deemed necessary or expedient.

- (a) A Special Meeting shall be called at the written request of twenty percent (20%) of the Regular Members.
- (b) The call for such a Special Meeting shall be issued ten (10) days in advance and shall state the purpose thereof, no other business shall be discussed at such meeting.

14.05 PARLIAMENTARY LAW

The latest edition of the Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the Chapter on all questions of Parliamentary Law.

14.06 ORDER OF BUSINESS

The Order of Business for the Annual Meeting and the Executive Board meeting shall be as follows:

- (a) Reading of the minutes of the previous meeting.
- (b) President's Report which shall include activities of the Executive Board and such recommendations as the may desire to make to the Chapter.
- (c) Report of the Secretary.
- (d) Report of the Treasurer.
- (e) Report of Standing Committees.
- (f) Report of Special Committees.
- (g) Old Business.
- (h) New Business.
- (i) Announcement of New Officers for the New Year (Annual Meeting only).
- (j) Adjournment.

14.07 ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY VARY

The preceding Order of Business may be varied by the President and/or the Executive Board at their discretion.

14.08 QUORUM

A Quorum of more than fifty percent (50%) of the members of the Executive Board is required to conduct business at any time.

ARTICLE XV – EMBLEM AND SEAL

15.01 EMBLEM AND SEAL

The Chapter Executive Board shall adopt the emblem and seal of the State Association.

15.02 USE OF THE ASSOCIATION EMBLEM

Regular Members in good standing may use the Association's name and emblem on their stationery, cards, advertising matters, firm signs and equipment.

15.03 SEAL OF THE CHAPTER

The Seal of the Chapter shall set forth its name, the year of incorporation of the State Association and the State of Incorporation.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

ARTICLE XVI – PUBLICATION

16.01 OFFICIAL PUBLICATION

The Executive Board shall provide for an official publication to be issued periodically.

16.02 OTHER PUBLICATIONS

All other publication and press releases shall be composed under the direction of the Publication Committee.

ARTICLE XVII – EXPULSION AND SUSPENSION

17.01 ESTABLISHMENT OF AN ETHICS COMMITTEE AND ADVISORY BOARD

In accordance with the “Guidelines for Processing Violations of Ethics of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors,” the Southern Nevada Chapter shall:

- (a) Establish the Ethics Committee composed of an odd number of members.
- (b) Establish an Ethics Advisory Board which consists of the Ethics Committee and the Chapter Officers.

17.02 VIOLATIONS OF THE CODE OF ETHICS AND THE BYLAWS

In event any member knowingly violates the Code of Ethics of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors or any provision thereof; he/she shall be subject to expulsion or suspension as a member of the Chapter and Association.

17.03 PROCESSING COMPLAINTS

When processing complaints, the Ethics Committee and Advisory Board shall abide by the processes set forth in the “Guidelines for Processing Violations of the Code of Ethics of the Nevada Association of Land Surveyors.”

ARTICLE XVIII – AMENDMENTS

The Executive Board or at least Five Regular Members “in-good-standing” may initiate a Concept of Amendment (Concept) to these articles. The Concept may be submitted to the Constitution and Bylaw Committee (CBL) at any regular or special meeting. Preferably the Concept, because of time constraints, should be submitted prior to the Executive Board Meeting in February (SECTION 12.03).

18.01 BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

- (a) Members of the Executive Board shall submit the Concept to the CBL Committee. In writing the proposed amendment, the CBL Committee shall review previous amendment to the Chapter’s CBL, and review the State Association’s Constitution for compliance and conformity in form (SECTION 12.03).
- (b) In accordance with SECTION 12.03 the CBL Committee shall submit a draft of the proposed amendment(s) to the Chapter Executive Board and the State Board of Directors for review.

18.02 BY PETITION

- (a) At least five (5) Regular Members in good in standing may initiate a Concept in writing. In preparing the proposed Concept, the Petitioners shall review the Chapter’s and State CBLs for compliance and conformity in form.
- (b) The Petition for Amendment and the Concept shall be submitted to the Chapter Secretary or Executive Secretary to be logged-in and then forwarded to the Chapter CBL Committee to review for compliance and conformity in form.
- (c) In review of the Petition and Concept, the CBL Committee should suggest corrections in grammar and/or in content so the Concept will match the format of the present CBLs.
- (d) After making the grammar and format corrections, the Petition needs seven (7) more signatures for a total of twelve (12) signatures before submitting the final proposed amendment to the Executive Board for approval.

**CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS OF THE
SOUTHERN NEVADA CHAPTER
-NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF LAND SURVEYORS-**

18.03 APPROVAL BY THE BOARD

- (a) In either case the Executive Board shall submit the proposed amendments to the Association's CLB Committee to review for compliance and conformity in form.
- (b) After the proposed amendments have been reviewed by the Association's CBL Committee and corrections for compliance and form are made, an approval of the proposed amendments takes a majority vote of the Executive Board.
- (c) The Board's approval is a recommendation to the qualified voting members to pass the proposed amendments as presented.

18.04 CHAPTER RATIFICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE

- (a) Any proposed amendments to the Constitution and Bylaws must be ratified by two-thirds (2/3) votes of qualified members, as defined in Article III, who respond by mail ballot within the time period specified.
- (b) The Amendment(s) to the Constitution and Bylaws take effect or do not take effect on the date the ballots are counted and recorded by the Teller Committee.

18.05 ATTESTATION

On the 4TH day December, 2006, the above amended Constitution and Bylaws of the Southern Nevada Chapter – Nevada Association of Land Surveyors, henceforth referred to as "Amendment 8" was ratified by the Chapter's qualified voting members as defined in Article III, and this action was entered into the minutes on the 12TH day of December, 2006.

D. Gregory Neel, President

Date ____/____/____

Donna J. Stralow, Secretary

Date ____/____/____

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

"Amendment 7," dated November 28, 2001; Paul Burn, President and Gerald D. "Jerry" Juarez, Secretary

"Amendment 6," dated November 29, 2000; Robert S. Mercado, President and Timothy J. Wolf, Secretary

"Amendment 5," dated December 15, 1999; Michael G. Kidd, President and Paul Burn Secretary

"Amendment 4," dated October 22, 1997; Brett K. Jefferson, President and Michael G. Kidd, Secretary

"Amendment 3," dated November 20, 1996; Byron E. Johnson, President and William R. Workman, Secretary

"Amendment 2," dated December 8, 1993; James P. Stacy, President and Stephen P. Gurlides, Secretary

"Amendment 1," dated November 19, 1992; William T. Avery, President and Steven L. Youngberg, Secretary

"Amendment 0," dated May 2, 1974; Russell Avery President and Stephen F. Turner, Secretary